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RESHREMBRE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The Group's loss for the year and the Group's financial position at 31 March
2020 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 188.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Lee George LAM (Chairman)

Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Duncan CHIU

LAU Chun-kong

LING Kar-kan

Hendrick SIN

Rosana WONG Wai-man

Victor NG Chi-keung (appointed on 1 April 2019)
Charleston SIN Chiu-shun (appointed on 1 April 2019)
Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing (appointed on 1 April 2019)
Annie CHOI Suk-han (appointed on 30 July 2019)
Christopher CHAQ Yu-hang (appointed on 1 April 2020)
Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han (appointed on 1 April 2020)
Michael LEUNG Kin-man (appointed on 1 April 2020)
CHEUK Wing-hing (resigned on 12 April 2019)

Millie NG KIANG Mei-nei (appointed on 12 April 2019

and resigned on 30 July 2019)

Philip CHAN Ching-ho (retired on 31 March 2020)
Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching (retired on 31 March 2020)
Davey CHUNG Pui-hong (alternate director to Annie CHOI Suk-han,
appointed on 30 July 2019)

(alternate director to Millie NG KIANG Mei-nei,

appointed on 12 April 2019 and resigned on 30 July 2019)
(alternate director to CHEUK Wing-hing, resigned on 12 April 2019)

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of Association in
connection with the retirement of directors by rotation, all existing Directors
continue in office for the following year.
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Report of the Directors

EEFHRE

Directors (continued)

The persons who were directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during
the year and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) were:

Peter YAN King-shun
LEE Kok-ming
WONG Kiu-hei (alternate director to Peter YAN King-shun)

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company'’s directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company or any of the Company's holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Meridien Cyberport, the facilities
management agreement and the system operation contract, no other
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, the permitted indemnity
provision as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for the benefit of the directors of the Company was in force. The Company
has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the directors’ liabilities
in respect of any legal actions against its directors arising out of corporate
activities.
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Auditor

Ernst & Young retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lee George LAM
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 July 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
ERVR ER ClIE =

EY::

Independent auditor’s report

To the member of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
EERHSAEEBRAR

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 100 to 188, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the report of the
Directors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
ERVR ER ClIE =

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
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responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 July 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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Year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z2020F3831HIEEE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

reEEmBmR

Year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE2020E3831HIEEE

2020
HK$
BT

2019
HK$
BT

2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
M 5E BT BT
REVENUE WA 4 478,264,533 509,547,500
Other net income HUg A F4E 4 35,731,925 47,335,291
513,996,458 556,882,791

EXPENSES BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION RetAREm T H KR

ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND IEZZH

DEPRECIATION
Building management expenses YHEEL H (159,133,049) (151,254,179)
Staff costs I=RN%:N 5 (102,402,072) (101,615,660)
Government rent and rates AR Ry = B 9 (16,881,122) (14,509,109)
Other operating expenses Hh&&E 7 H (82,662,362) (100,046,060)
Finance costs H%E A 6 (154,787) (2,834)

(361,233,392) (367,427,842)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE PUBLIC RetABmEmES T H KR

MISSION ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND &2 EEET

DEPRECIATION 152,763,066 189,454,949
Public mission activities expenses NREEIHZH 10 (153,418,150) (133,357,811)
Fair value loss on a debt investment at BARBES AEGZ

fair value through profit or loss BHEREANEEESE (2,305,517) =
OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT ReHFERNLZE (5518)

BEFORE DEPRECIATION aFl (2,960,601) 56,097,138
Depreciation e (137,511,547) (132,648,616)
LOSS BEFORE TAX IR ARSI 6 (140,472,148) (76,551,478)
Income tax FrigiR 1" - -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREIE (140,472,148) (76,551,478)

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME

Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

- Changes in fair value of equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

FAER

Hth2mE (5518) =

RERAEIEERm o EERT
ZHM2E (BH8), R
—EERANBES AEM

EEWEZREREZ

AR EEED

FREMSE (BE)
Y (HERHRIE)

FREEEERER

(140,472,148)

(6,492,498)

(76,551,478)

14,569,725

(6,492,498)

14,569,725

(146,964,646)

(61,981,753)

BIhEH 2019/20 2R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

rrEMBRR iR e MR

As at 31 March 2020 72202053531H As at 31 March 2020 $2202053831H

2020 2019 2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$ Notes HK$ HK$
MisE BT BT ibgzd BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREas
Property, plant and equipment YN MR REEE 13 2,834,964,584 2,869,506,312 Development maintenance fund LRMEEES 22 390,999,654 397,612,582
Right-of-use assets RS E 14(a) 6,606,435 = Deferred rental payable EIEFE - 222,775
Deferred rental receivables IR AR & 7,274,144 8,503,155 Lease liabilities HEaE 14(b) 4,955,359 -
Cyberport Macro Fund investments EIEENESAIXESKSE 15 99,768,100 54,866,109
Investments in securities s 16 84,074,954 70,830,649 Total non-current liabilities JEMEN B EHAREE 395,955,013 397,835,357
Prepayments and deposits SN R 18 22,999,823 27,755,272
Net assets BEFE 3,341,028,686 3,481,380,404
Total non-current assets IERSEESEE 3,055,688,040 3,031,461,497
EQUITY W
CURRENT ASSETS hEEE Share capital B& 23 300,000,002 300,000,002
ERERES P 319,821 337.411 Reserves [E= 3,041,028,684 3,181,380,402
Trade receivables FEUBR R 17 19,780,948 10,986,266
Prepayments, deposits and ST « B R Total equity 1R 4BEE 3,341,028,686 3,481,380,404
other receivables HAuhrEWEIa 18 26,514,196 20,999,761
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries A EEN NG R 27(b) 3,293,234 261,000
Investments in securities BEEE 16 708,251,929 680,463,448
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHET 19 417,576,079 647,997,733
Lee George LAM Victor NG Chi-keung
Total current assets MENE AR 1,175,736,207 1,361,045,619 e st
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaR pirector pirector
Trade payables FE(TAR TR 41,976,221 28,514,375 _— LR
Other payables and accruals HMEARIERETE A 20 101,432,350 148,158,795
Rental and other deposits e REMTE 21 94,797,218 82,132,286
Amount due to the immediate eI EBERABRIE
holding company 27(b) 254,293,578 254,293,578
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary B —RERRMNBASRIE 27(b) - 192,321
Lease liabilities HEaE 14(b) 1,941,181 -
Total current liabilities BB EAREE 494,440,548 513,291,355
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEBEFE 681,295,659 847,754,264
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEAARERREHAE 3,736,983,699 3,879,215,761
Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report RS 2019/20 1R 103
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rEREmEER

Year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z2020F3831HIEEE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meRERER

Year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE2020E3831HIEEE

Share Capital Fairvalue  Accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve losses equity
A BAfiE ARBEERE EithE EnaE
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
Mzt BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2018 #2018E481H 2 5,366,157,807 - (2124211676 3241886,135
Loss for the year FREE - - - (76,551,478) (76,551,478)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMZENS |
- Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ — ISR RA R BE AHM
designated at fair value through other 2EYEZREAREZ
comprehensive income, net of tax ARBELE (NRRE) = = 14,569,725 = 14,569,725
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREMmEIRAE - - 14,569,725 (76,551,478) (61,981,753)
Subtotal et 2 5,366,157,807 14,569,725 (2,200823,152)  3,179,904,382
Issue of shares KT 23 300,000,000 - - - 300,000,000
Transfer from development maintenance HEBEBESEEE
fund to capital reserve BARE 2 - 1,476,022 - = 1,476,022
At 31 March 2019 and at 1 April 2019 12019538318 Rk
R2019648 18 300000002 5367633829° 14569725 (2,200,823,152)* 3,481,380,60
Loss for the year FREE - - - (140,472,148)  (140,472,148)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMEZAESE .
- Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ — ISR RA A BE AHM
designated at fair value through other 2EYEZREAREZ
comprehensive income, net of tax ARBEES (NRFRE) - - (6,492,498) - (6,492,498)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEELE - - (6,492,498)  (140,472,148)  (146,964,646)
Subtotal INat 300,000,002  5,367,633,829 8,077,227  (2,341,295,300)  3,334,415,758
Transfer from development maintenance HEBEEESEEE
fund to capital reserve BAME 2 - 6,612,928 - - 6,612,928
At 31 March 2020 #2020F3A8318 300,000,002  5,374,246,757* 8,077,227  (2,341,295,300)* 3,341,028,686

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of *
HK$3,041,028,684 (2019: HK$3,181,380,402) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
M35 BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KREEHMZAERE
Loss before tax FRIRRIE 1B (140,472,148) (76,551,478)
Adjustments for: HEE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment YN S MR MR EITE b 135,595,484 132,648,616
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREENE 6 1,916,063 -
Realisation of government grants HTEEhE&&IR (4,297,395) (2,000,000)
Interest income from financial assets at PRSP A BR 2 7
amortised cost, net of amortisation BEN S WA R
of premium e 4 (3,376,292) (9,574,292)
Interest income from investments at fair BARBEFAEBRZ
value through profit or loss KREFSUWA 4 (20,935,716) (16,411,555)
Fair value loss/(gain) on a debt investment BARBESTAEGRZ
at fair value through profit or loss BHREEARNEE
B8 (Wa) 2,305,517 (340,024)
Net realised/unrealised losses/(gains) on BARBESAEGZ
investments at fair value through HEESIR REHE
profit or loss B8 (KR) 358 4 3,090,074 (3,978,725)
Interest income on bank deposits SRIT IR B WA 4 (9,146,004) (6,601,200)
Impairment of trade receivables FEWERFRE 6 48,507 48,658
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables FEUWER TR B[] 6 (60,908) (803,259)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWZE ~ BB REE
plant and equipment, net IBEZ B8 358 6 153,327 744,357
Finance costs B E R 154,787 2,834
Revaluation losses/(gains) on investments KBEBEEE (k) 996,824 (248,646)
(34,027,880) 16,935,286
Decrease in deferred rental receivables IEIEFEUS AR & R 1,229,011 3,886,524
Decrease in inventories Z5RED 17,590 202,398
Increase in trade receivables FE AR FRIT N (8,782,281) (1,807,169)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FERRIB ~ e R HEAM
other receivables FEUSRRIEE N (16,100,683) (22,907,376)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due B EE NN
from fellow subsidiaries HIE () E (3,032,234) 638,937
Increase in trade payables FE(TBRRNIE AN 13,487,886 194,394
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HithrE (R IE R fE 5T
and accruals & (RL) /18 (47,875,990) 48,735,269
(Decrease)/increase in an amount due L RIRMB AT
to a fellow subsidiary IE Gieb),/ 1m (192,321) 192,321
Increase/(decrease) in rental and other deposits fE& K Efhigs1Em ~ Gl) 12,664,932 (3,067,709)
Decrease in deferred rental payable EIEFE SR - (46,900)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &g (FrA) / EXzRE (82,611,970) 42,955,975
Interest on lease liabilities HESRNE (154,787) =
Net cash flows (used in)/from KEGEE (FRA) B2
operating activities REREREE (82,766,757) 42,955,975

BHES 2019/20 & 3R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meRERER

Year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z2020F3831HIEEE

Notes

MysE

2020
HK$

2019
HK$

BT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of items of property,
plant and equipment

Prepayment and deposits paid for the purchase
of items of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

Deposit paid for the purchase of Cyberport
Macro Fund investment

Purchase of investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Purchase of financial assets at amortised cost

Proceeds from sale and redemption of financial
assets at amortised cost

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale and redemption of
investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Interest income received from:
- Financial assets at amortised cost

- Investments at fair value through
profit or loss

- Bank deposits

Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with
original maturity of more than three months

Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

REEHZHERE
BAYE - B RRHFHER

BAYE - B RRHFEE
PR TR TR R e
BABEBREAXEDSRE

BAMEBREEES
REIIRE
BARANBESARmZ
B&E
BAZEHE AT IR
ERVEE

HRE BRI HEM AR
ERYE EPTSRE
REWE eSS RkrEEE
PRISRVIAE
HERBOIZANBESA
B 2 R EFFIFRUE

BUFIBHA :
— A BR SR EE
—BAnBESFAREZ
E =
— IRITER
BEHEA=EE U >
EHRERURL (8 In)

REFEPRS(FRA)
REMNEFER

(96,641,012)

(10,888,302)
(39,570,276)

(395,718,342)

(14,331,839)

(63,430,752)

(12,940,534)
(7,866,009)

(14,129,730)

(338,154,071)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maRTRER

Year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE2020E3831HIEEE

151,188,111 281,062,645
- 2,000
213,575,419 307,169,990
5,477,885 13,534,168
25,562,253 10,284,236
8,712,784 6,601,200
358,873,875 (358,873,875)
206,240,556 (176,740,732)

2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
M35 BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MBEMZIRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRDEREEIE 23 - 300,000,000
Government grants received B EFEE 6,853,195 1,679,965
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZAEED 25(b) (1,874,773) =
Capital element of finance lease MEREREENRE LD
rental payments - (1,577,476)
Interest element of finance lease RMERAERSNHRA S
rental payments - (2,834)
Net cash flows from financing activities B RIS IRESRE R 4,978,422 300,099,655
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERREESEBEEIEIMFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 128,452,221 166,314,898
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYzRERIREEEIER
beginning of year 289,123,858 122,808,960
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZRERIAEEEEE
AT THE END OF YEAR 417,576,079 289,123,858
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH RERREZEEBEGRIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances as stated in the FEMBRRERMIIRER
consolidated statement of financial position RITEEF 19 417,576,079 647,997,733
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity REERFRIIHAEA=EA
of more than three months when acquired MU EZ IR ERER 19 - (358,873,875)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FeaRERERMIIRER
consolidated statement of cash flows REEEIEH 417,576,079 289,123,858
BIES 2019/20 &R
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

Corporate information

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered
office of the Company as at 31 March 2019 was located at Units 1102-
1104, Level 11, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong and was
subsequently changed to Level 6, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong with effect from 6 January 2020.

The principal activity of the Company is to support and promote
innovation and technology development in Hong Kong through the
creation of a comprehensive ecosystem of digital technology companies.

With a vision to build Cyberport as a main force in developing the
digital technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong (the
“Vision"), the public mission of the Company are anchored on three
strategic directions:

= Nurtures youth and start-ups by providing comprehensive
entrepreneurship programmes and early stage funding;

= Scales digital technology companies with Cyberport's global
network; and

= Connects enterprises, SMEs and the public in fostering digital
economy.

Under the Group’s relentless pursuit of excellence, the Group takes
a pragmatic and comprehensive approach in realising its Vision. To
ensure the line-up of services is dynamic and flexible in meeting the
needs of budding technology entrepreneurs, investor community and
industry talents, the Company actively builds strong partnerships with
leaders from technology industry, academia, research institutes and
professional bodies.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Company has launched the Cyberport Macro Fund (“CMF")
for Hong Kong-based digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size
of HK$200 million, the CMF aims to accelerate the growth of digital
technology start-ups. As an investment fund that targets to co-invest in
Cyberport digital entrepreneurs with other private and public investors
as seed to Series A stage funding, the CMF also aims to encourage the
development of a venture capital ecosystem for start-ups in Hong Kong.
Further details of the investments made up to the end of the reporting
period are included in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate information (continued)

The Group has established various teams (“Operating Teams”) to
achieve the above public mission. The expenses incurred by Operating
Teams that contribute to the successful running of the public mission
activities are disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong
Cyberport Development Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and is wholly owned by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR") via The Financial Secretary
Incorporated.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Issued ordinary
Name incorporation share capital
Bia SE A LR BEITLBRAE
Cyberport Macro Fund Limited Hong Kong HK$1
) 187
CMF One Limited Hong Kong HK$1
&E 187
CMF Two Limited Hong Kong HK$1
&E 1787t
CMF Three Limited Hong Kong HK$1
) 1%7T
CMF Four Limited Hong Kong HK$1
) 1787t
CMF Five Limited Hong Kong HK$1
& =
CMF Six Limited Hong Kong HK$1
v 1E7T
CMF Seven Limited Hong Kong HK$1
B 17T
CMF Eight Limited Hong Kong HK$1
) 17T

iR MR RN

REEHR (@)

RER FRAFR D > AEBRCRIZE
B ((EERRK) - EERBRSRINEMA
AL e E E M AMEBIR S AR & A5 R I
FH10IRER ©

RRBRBBERBERERERLAD (1
BEREMALTBAEBEHTHRE (58
B&) BNEBHMBEEEE2ERENA
8) 2ER2ERBAR -

BB AR NER
AT ZMBARENT :

Percentage of equity Principal
attributable to the Company activities

EAREEEEE AL TEEH

Direct Indirect
H# i
100 - Investment holding

REZR

= 100 Investment holding

REAZRK

= 100 Investment holding

REZR

= 100 Investment holding

REZR

= 100 Investment holding

REZR

= 100 Investment holding
REER

= 100 Investment holding

REER

= 100 Investment holding

REZR

= 100 Investment holding
REZR

BIH5 S 2019/20 F 3R
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

2.1

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, a debt investment
at fair value through profit or loss and equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income which have been measured at
fair value. These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Group.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Group has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Group, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report
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2.1

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 19 and HKAS 28, and
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not

relevant to the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial

statements, the nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs

are described below:

(a)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases - Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet
model to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, except for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either operating
or finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17. For a
sublease arrangement, the classification of the sublease is made
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, instead of by reference to the underlying asset. HKFRS 16
did not have any significant impact on leases where the Group is
the lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of
1 April 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of accumulated losses at 1 April 2019, and the comparative
information for 2019 was not restated and continued to be
reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report
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(a)

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(continued)
New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset and the
right to direct the use of the identified asset. The Group elected
to use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard
to be applied only to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial
application. Contracts that were not identified as leases under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to
contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 April 2019.

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office
premises, office equipment and information technology facilities.
As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as either
finance leases or operating leases based on the assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the
Group applies a single approach to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for two
elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected on a
lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying
asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term commencing
from 1 April 2019, the Group recognises depreciation (and
impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets and interest
accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(a)

(continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating leases
(continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 were recognised based on the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019 and separately
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position immediately before 1 April 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on
HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the right-of-
use assets separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019:

Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with
a lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application

Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease

Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(a)

(continued)
Financial impact at 1 April 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019
was as follows:

iR MR RN

2.2 GiERRIEEEE @

(a)

(&
20195481 BBIS R &

IR2019F4B1 HIRMB B BRE %
RS 16SRFTELENRZBIT ¢

Increase/(decrease)
120, GRi)
HK$
BT
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets and
increase in total assets RS AN A EELRREIE M 8,238,082
Liabilities afE
Increase in lease liabilities HEaEEM 8,486,897
Decrease in trade payables FE(T AR AR (26,040)
Decrease in deferred rental payable IEEFES TSR (222,775)
Increase in total liabilities B E4REEIE M 8,238,082

The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 reconciled to the operating
lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

R2019F4B 1B 2 E 8 E R 12019938
SIHZ SR EAFELERIOT ¢

HK$
BT
Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 4201943831 A 2 K& A EKIE 10,497,757
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases and &, : BA55HATH & K FI6RTHER
those leases with a remaining lease term 1202053831 H® 2 Ai#R LE
ended on or before 31 March 2020 ZHEERANEE (1,968,608)
8,529,149
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate 7220194818 Z IN#EFI9iRE
as at 1 April 2019 {EEF=XR 2.18%
Discounted operating lease commitments and 1201948 1B 2 BT IR
lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 HEREREEERE 8,486,897
M5 2019/20 & 3R
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

[y =

2.2

2.3

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(b) HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to
as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The Group determined
that the interpretation did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial
reporting standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework*
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions’
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material’

HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use*
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16
2018-2020 Cycle and HKAS 41¢

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

2.2

2.3

(b) &% ERFBREREZEY) —
RREFRVREEMRBLES R
EEBEAENE2RZEAZT
BEM (BEBZR TREERBR
) ARSI BVIREL) 28
STERIET X - R BAEANEES
TR 1258 RSN 2 IR IBIEIR
TCE TR ELE BN TE A 18 i 3 AR
ZREREESBRAZRE - ZREA
BRETIISE: IBERESETREY
FHEERBRETERREE (VEE
HIRNBRE 2 MR BT EZR
% 5 (i) BB A8 U0 {7 78 <E R SR AR i A 3
MIERE ~ 1A ~ RBANEFHE
RBBRBIBRRRE ; KivV)ERE
MAEEEBERBEREE) - EMH
RrZaBERTEENMHRRRE
R EAERFE -

%5%@%%5&2%%%&%%
z I\I
FEBI KR UL SHBHREAEE THIER

B R AT RAMES T B B R
#8) o

EEMBREEAFRNET FHNES
BANBREEAFRMET  AERREL
BAMBREENER BE AEFEENE

S EAERRAEENBR

HEABTHAOEET

EEMBREEABI0ER  KEZHEHEAFHLE
BEGHENFR LEZENEENED T

(2011%) BER] =i
BENBREENSRIET Covie- 191885 B R
EEMBREENE R =
BESHENR I KNER BANES

D5 EEIFRIET
BAGHENBENE]  (HETERAIETE
BAGHENBRNE]  EELN-ETEAH

2
BRUBREER018F200F BEUKREENE IR
BEREENE BAMBREENZT

EEMBRIZAS 6%
REBEHEBLF
N

‘ R20205 1 A1 H 3 2 18 B8 48 B9 5 EZ HA RS
R

2 gézozofﬁéﬁlEIEJZ‘Z%IE';%&@EMHEEHFEEJE
X

8 §§2021¢1ﬁ1EEJZZ%%%%&%E@EEQHF&JE
X

2 @2022&151EEEZ%?EE?SE@EFQ%@F&JE
%

B AR ERHERE A > R AR

2.3

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial
reporting standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and acquired substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.
Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other
events that occur on or after the date of first application, the Group will
not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the effects of
interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2020. Early application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 exempts lessees from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic are lease
modifications and allows lessees to account for such rent concessions
as if they were not lease modifications. It applies to covid-19-related
rent concessions that reduce lease payments due on or before 30 June
2021. The amendment does not affect lessors. The amendment is to be
applied retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 June 2020. Early application is permitted, including in
consolidated financial statements not authorised for issue at 4 June
2020. The amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial
reporting standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2020. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, a debt investment at fair value through profit or loss, and equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

0! the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the period

of the lease
Building services and support facilities 10%
Information technology facilities 20%
Centres equipment 20% - 33'/,%
Leasehold improvements 10%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

(b)  Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b)  Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is
a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)
Group as a lessor (continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as a
finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to
which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

Leases (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted
for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of
the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over
the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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iR MR RME

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of
equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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iR MR RME

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates,
if and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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iR MR RME

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost
(loans and borrowings and payables)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of each reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
For a contract where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Hotel and management services

Revenue from the provision of hotel and management services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Revenue from food and beverage

Revenue from sale of food and beverages is recognised at the point
in time when the control of the assets is transferred to the buyer,
generally upon consumption of the food and beverage items by the
customer.

Other facilities services

Revenue from promotion, additional air-conditioning and chilled water
charge, license fee and other facilities charge is recognised over time
as services are rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from event and venue fee, vetting and coordination fee,
tenants bus ticket and other premise fee is recognised at the point
in time when customer has obtained control of the service, generally
when the services are rendered.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Car park fee is recognised when the services are rendered.

Other incidental income and services income are recognised when the
income is entitled and services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

2.4

iR MR RN

FEEHBREE @

WA RS (18)

EREHBA (8

BER EEERRES

RADEIS KBRS 2 WA FREHRE AL
BEREHESD 0 REAE P RERIROHFER
EMRHZ A o

BB IR
HE RMAEE Z WA R B EEGIRER T
BAE (BEREFHERRBRREE) #

Bl
e ©

Btk

HE  BINERRRKE - MRE R EHAh
R E 2 WA R AR R B & R e 7%
MEss > 1= A R UWER HFE R EE iR M
ZHEE o

EERISME S RAEE HRELE
RREMYEERZWANREFERRGE
2 BrERE (BB HREE) B2 -

HithzRiRZ WA

TEEUR AT ABAVHRIZ BRE ] O 5] 1858 o M IREY
AN FEIEEUNNE R EEE RN E
ENEFHRABRFERSUA o

HEE R HARF R ET o

H A B A R AR TS A B BRI A RedR
BRTESESTESD o

Hthg A
SRR B ERF % - BIBR
BREmMTAERMAIERE (HBEH
B (HEA) 2 A RRREWMAERITER
ELRMEEREDFEZ LR TR

BHES 2019/20 & 3R

135



136

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RME

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Foreign currency transactions

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Group's functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.
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Significant accounting estimates

The preparation of the Group’'s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs review for impairment of non-financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

The Group reviews certain indicators of potential impairment of these
assets such as reported sales and purchase prices, market demand
and general market conditions. The Group considers “Buildings held for
rental”, "Hotel building” and "Building services and support facilities”
as a portfolio of assets and identifies the cash-generating unit to which
the portfolio of assets belongs by referring to the valuation performed
by independent external valuers, after taking into consideration the net
income allowing for reversionary potential. The assumptions adopted in
the property valuation are based on the market conditions existing at
the end of the reporting period, with reference to current market sales
prices and the appropriate capitalisation rate.

Based on the Group's best estimates, no provision for impairment loss
on the non-financial assets is necessary.
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Significant accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Investments in securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 on initial classification of
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as financial assets at amortised cost if the Group has
the intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity; or at fair
value through profit or loss if the investments are managed by external
fund managers and their performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, and information about the investments is provided internally on
that basis to the Group's key management.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group evaluates its
intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group
fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for specific
circumstances - for example, selling an insignificant amount close
to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire class as debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The investments would, therefore, be measured at fair value not at
amortised cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
Group engages external fund managers to manage the investment
portfolio which is evaluated and reported internally on a fair value
basis. Accordingly, these investments are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product)
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the financial services, media and retail
sectors, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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Significant accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

The unlisted equity investments and an unlisted debt investment
have been valued based on the recent market transaction prices,
market-based valuation technique and expected cash flows discounted
at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics. The valuations require the Group to make estimates
about expected future cash flows, credit risk, volatility and discount
rates, and to determine the comparable public companies (peers) and
select the price multiple, and hence, they are subject to uncertainty.
The fair values of the unlisted equity investments and an unlisted debt
investment at 31 March 2020 were HK$91,921,406 and HK$7,846,694,
respectively. Further details are included in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors,
such as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from change
or improvements in the provision of services, or from a change in
the market demand for the service output of the asset, the expected
usage of the asset, the expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the
asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar
way. An adjustment of depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives
and/or residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are
different from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.
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Significant accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as the Group that does not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are
not in the Group's functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such us the
Company's stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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Revenue and other net income
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VPN
72 ==

4. IWWABLEAMUIAFEE

AR IR

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZDHET :
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue from contracts with customers EERSHIMA
Income from hotel operation BIEZEUTA 92,786,366 124,922,563
Building management income MEEEBEWA
- Management fee income —BEBWA 89,628,540 89,294,234
- Other facilities income — H =R Halk A 24,104,714 19,159,438
206,519,620 233,376,235
Revenue from other sources HMAREZ WA
Rental income RS UA
Variable lease payments that do not W ABURP R IBIEE T
depend on an index or a rate WEEZ a & E 6,267,562 7,577,207
Other lease payments, including HEN > 81F
fixed payments ERNEN 250,968,235 254,394,380
257,235,797 261,971,587
Car park fee income JAEEWA 14,232,358 13,998,390
Other incidental income Hhmsug A 276,758 201,288
271,744,913 276,171,265
478,264,533 509,547,500
(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from (@) EBEREHNWAZDEWRAER
contracts with customers
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT B
Type of services BRFsEEEY
Income from hotel operation BIEEBEWA
- Room income —ERIA 44,962,542 72,386,629
- Food and beverage income — BRAEREA 47,823,824 52,535,934
Building management income LUES=SETUN
- Management fee income — BEBERA 89,628,540 89,294,234
- Other facilities income — HMERFEUA 24,104,714 19,159,438
Total revenue from contracts with customers & B & 4JUL A 4828 206,519,620 233,376,235
BUREH 2019/20 2R
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AT IRRMIEE R TS IRRMIEE
4. Revenue and other net income (continued) 4, WABEMGAEER @) 4. Revenue and other net income (continued) 4, WABEMEAEEE @
(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from @) BERSEHARAZTEBAER (b) Performance obligations (continued) (b) RBHEE @
contracts with customers (continued) (#) Management fee income EEBEWA

2020 2019 The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are BHASAENIEHIRF R SR EER
HKS HKS rendered. ME1T °
&7 2T Other facilities income Hhsg Ut A
The performance obligation is satisfied over time or at the point BASEREREER RN IRHART
Geographical markets HIB T 1S in time as services are rendered. BFRETT ©
= .
Hong Kong &g 206,519,620 233,376,235 The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining 1R20204F3831H > DEEEFIERELQ
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) BT (REBITHEIBDRERTT) =
Timing of revenue recognition LNt which amounted to HK$2,528,683 as at 31 March 2020 (2019: R 7B #2,528,6838 7T (20194F !
Services transferred at a point in time PE— BRI EE 2 RS 63,034,579 63,148,412 HK$1,979,225) are expected to be recognised within one year. 1.979.225% 75) > FHHRE —F A
=
Services transferred over time FERF B 82T 2 RS 143,485,041 170,227,823 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers & FE &S4IUKA4E%E 206,519,620 233,376,235 2020 2019
HK$ HK$
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in TERHIIN AR S HIFRFES S ASRS BT BT
the current reporting period that were included in the contract S aEh s IWASEE !
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
Other net income HRAFEE
2020 2019 Interest income from financial assets at NI AT E T SR B E
amortised cost, net of amortisation of ZHRBUA - MR EER
HK$ HK$ premium of HK$166,967 166,967 7T (20194F ©
BT BT (2019: HK$1,688,840) 1,688,840 7T) 3,376,292 9,574,292
Interest income from investments WARNBESAEBTDZ
o . at fair value through profit or loss KEZFEWA 20,935,716 16,411,555
Revenue recognised that was included R ARSI SN e -
: : PE
in contract liabilities at the beginning EEDTA Interest income on bank deposits IRITERZFEWA 9,146,004 6,601,200
of the reporting period: Rental deposits forfeited wRWz HEZs - 3,437,237
Income from hotel operation IS B A 1,979,225 3,302,947 Services income from fellow B M~ B 2 RES
subsidiaries (note) A (M3EE) 4,201,654 4,201,654
(b) Performance obligations b) BHEE Net realised/unrealised (losses)/gains WANBEE ARG
Inf ti bout the G ’ f bligati [ HRAE W= T s # on investments at fair value LEZBEIR S RER
nformation about the Group's performance obligations is ik =L it : o JO
. psp 9 i 2= 5 [ /B A9 B 2 SR L 4 through profit or loss (#518) /Wt /P58 (3,090,074) 3,978,725
summarised below: T
Fair value gain on a debt investment WARNBESAEBTDZ
Incame from hotel aperation TR A at fair value through profit or loss EEREANBERTR - 340,024
The performance obligation is satisfied over time when services BASENRIRURSEEEREER Foreign exchange differences, net SMEEZERFER (5,096,946) (1.336,452)
are rendered. BT o Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE « B RRE
plant and equipment EIE e - 2,000
Revenue from food and beverages BB A Bad debts recovered WeleliEER 790,113 3,321,797
The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer BHABEREREEAEER G Reversal of impairment of trade receivables  #[E|fEURERFN Z B (& 60,908 803,259
tai trol of th i [ t [ 4 = E A o ,
obtains control o e promised goods, being at the point I IEPREREHEE R EEE EOVETTITENR, GRS B R B 880,000 ~
when the customer consumes the food and beverage at the ) B1T o BAHEE B REUEIEET
S . : o Others Hith 4,528,258 =
restaurants. Payment of the transaction is due immediately at IR 5 o
the point when the customer consumes the food and beverage.
35,731,925 47,335,291
142 Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report RS 2019/20 1R
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e ERRMIEE
4. Revenue and other net income (continued) 4, WABEHMAEER @)
(b) Performance obligations (continued) (b) REBHEE @
Note: FiHEE
On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, R2000F5H24H » E BB B E &
Pokfulam (the “Residential Portion") was assigned to Hong Kong Cyberport KEAR (ERERAF BE R
(Ancillary Development) Limited ("HKCADL"), a fellow subsidiary, by Hong BRAEEEBHES MBER) BRAR
Kong Cyberport Development Holdings Limited (the “immediate holding (THKCADL) 3t H 58 £K #A 8 43 8 79 3 B
company”). Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25 October 2003 89695 EH A —Z0 5 T #h (TMEEZBH) © 1R
entered into between the Company and HKCADL, fixed monthly services ¥ 7K /A B) BIHKCADLFfT 57 17 H #A 20034
income of HK$125,600 was received from HKCADL commencing from 108250 2 IRFB 1% > A ABMEEND
November 2003 for the provision of services by the Company to facilitate ZEERMARTS > 52003F 11 ARBEA
the operation of the Residential Portion. The fee was revised to HK$200,000 BHKCADLU BX125,6007 7T 2 & € AR 75 Uk
commencing from April 2006 and to HK$261,000 commencing from May A o B20065F 48 F20085F58 L > tLIEUK
2008. The total amount received during the year was HK$3,132,000 (2019: & 9 P& 5] A& & B 200,000 7T 2261,000
HK$3,132,000). BT o AFE B W48 %E 43,132,000 7T
(20194F : 3,132,000 7T) °
Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered into TRIEAR A B BE 2 MY B8 A BISkillful Limited
between the Company and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary, monthly FfrsT 3L H 88 %20054238 128 Z IRF 1% »
services income was received for the provision of information technology ERBREEBOIRBEAR L K BAR
and telecommunications services to the Residential Portion. The total HmERWERBWA - XEEEURIREE
amount received during the year was HK$1,069,654 (2019: HK$1,069,654). #31,069,654787C (20194 @ 1,069,654787T) ©
5. Staff costs 5. BIMZA
An analysis of staff costs is as follows: BTImAZUT :
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and allowances e RoERL 122,073,882 118,053,172
Unutilised annual leave RKE=EHER 2,658,055 254,295
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BB EHEHER 5,112,622 3,591,643
Staff benefits and other staff costs BTIRMNMEMB A 1,161,760 2,337,485
131,006,319 124,236,595
Analysed into: Par =
Hotel JEIE 53,389,069 58,073,653
Corporate office NEVRERR 49,013,003 43,542,007
102,402,072 101,615,660
Operating Teams (note 10) EEER (MI5E10) 28,604,247 22,620,935
131,006,319 124,236,595

6.
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VPN
72 ==

AR IR

Loss before tax 6. PBRIERIESIE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBZBFRATEGEIBENGR,GIA) T3
EH
2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
FsE BT BT
Rental income less outgoings of W AIFRRSZ 15,277,822
HK$15,277,822 (2019: HK$13,050,309) #75 (2019 © 13,050,309
7T) (241,957,975) (248,921,278)
Cost of inventories FEZ 14,621,743 18,099,350
Depreciation of property, WP~ BB REITE
plant and equipment 13 135,595,484 132,648,616
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREERE 14(a) 1,916,063 -
Minimum lease payments KERETWRERENR
under operating leases - 10,851,445
Lease payments not included in the Tt AHEE G EW
measurement of lease liabilities HE 14(c) 2,711,686 =
Auditor’s remuneration %Gl 310,000 328,701
Impairment of trade receivables FEUWRBE =N 2 Bi{E 17 48,507 48,658
Reversal of impairment of BOIEWERR 2 RE
trade receivables 17 (60,908) (803,259)
Loss on disposal of items of property, — HEYH « R L H
plant and equipment, net BB Z B8535 153,327 744,357
Finance costs: MBER
Finance charges on obligations MEREEREZ MBS H
under a finance lease - 2,834
Interest on lease liabilities AEaEZFE 154,787 =
Directors’ remuneration 7. EEHE

The emoluments of the Directors of the Group disclosed pursuant to

section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of

the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation are as follows:

RIBEBAEMRBIE3BIMNER AT (HKE
EENDEN) RAFHKECAERSE

EffEIT

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors’ fees EEEE - =
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYET - -
Discretionary bonuses PIBTEAT - =
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET B - -
BUREH 2019/20 2R
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AT IRRMIEE R TS IRRMIEE
8. Five highest paid employees 8. hBEm=HES 10. Public mission activities expenses 10. AREHREBZH
Details of the remuneration of the five non-director highest paid hEFESEESHEECMEFENT ! All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary and dominant MARE AT EBNRES BRI
employees are as follows: purpose of public mission and that contribute to the successful running SHIPTI R DN A R e VR BN PR EE E 2 P
of public mission activities as described in note 1 to the consolidated AEEKEEIHIRRAAREREEX
2020 1 financial statements are considered as public mission activities H o BRAZHEE
expenses. Such expenses comprise:
HK$ HK$
A7 T 2020 2019
HK$ HK$
Salaries and allowances $re K2 Rh 12,753,288 10,020,767 BT BT
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIKEF 5TEIEH R 180,000 180,000
12,933,288 10.200,767 Staff costs SRR %N 28,604,247 22,620,935
Information technology facilities maintenance fees SRS XREREER 29,422,785 29,104,324
. . . . i ol e s
The number of the non-director highest paid employee whose Wen T THE SR s EE > ¥ Financial assistance to industry start-ups BEREIEES = =1 64,457,195 47,450,404
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: BT : Programme expenses (seminars, trainings, sHEISEE (Rt ~ 1353~
competitions, workshops and exhibitions) LB TR REE) 31,275,521 31,819,555
2020 2019 Government rent and rates HhFR Ry = B 508,187 616,280
Public mission communications NIR BB 7,216,218 7,358,381
Operating expenses "ETH 5,882,120 6,326,122
FHZX = S -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001787% 52,000,000 7T . Recovery of direct expenses (including government  REIE#EL H (BIEBFHEE
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001787c22,500,00078 7T 3 1 grants of HK$3,417,395 (2019: HK$2,000,000)) 23,417,395 7T (20194F :
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017&75 23,000,000 7T 1 1 2,000,000 7T) ) (13,948,123) (11,938,190)
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,00178 752 4,000,00078 7T 1 -
153,418,150 133,357,811
5 5
9. Government rent and rates 9. MIfHKZE
An analysis of government rent and rates is as follows: MR ERZ DT -
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hotel JEIE 1,603,300 1,458,800
Corporate office NEVFELR 15,277,822 13,050,309
16,881,122 14,509,109
Operating Teams (note 10) EEERX (fi5E10) 508,187 616,280
17,389,309 15,125,389
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11.

Income tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2019: Nil).

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to the loss before tax at the
Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax amount at the Group’s effective tax
rate is as follows:

11.

FRiSiA
AR AEEAFEL RN EBELEMRE

BREN > MU ERS B ERELBE
(20194F : £8) o

BRRREBACERIAE ZBRAIEES
MER AR ERERREAEREE
HERAT -

Loss before tax

PRI RS 1R

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory

tax rate of 16.5% 2B R
Income not subject to tax BERRZ WA
Expenses not deductible for tax AENRZAxZ
Tax losses not recognised R Z MIBRE
Tax amount at the Group's effective tax rate BAEHEERRETE
1i%8

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report
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2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(140,472,148) (76,551,478)
(23,177,904) (12,630,994)
(1,875,688) (1,145,302)
523,099 1,725,765
24,530,493 12,050,531

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RN

12. Deferred tax 12.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

IEEIRIR
BEREEERSEZSBNT

Losses
available
for offsetting

against future

Depreciation
in excess
of related

depreciation

taxable profits allowance Others Total
EIRcyzEl =gl EBL
RIRFERTR BRAE
i |l G = BiEzTE Hith “ast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2018 72018548 1H (114,800,693) 114,933,231 (132,538) =
Deferred tax (credited)/ FRREE GtA),
charged to profit or kR 2 IRIERRIE
loss during the year (12,144,666) 13,259,678 (1,115,012) -

At 31 March 2019 and 2019FE3831H K

1 April 2019 2019%481H (126,945,359)
Deferred tax (credited)/ FERRER 5tA),/
charged to profit or loss OBR 2 IRIERIE

during the year (23,047,587)

128,192,909  (1,247,550) -

21,808,041 1,239,546 -

At 31 March 2020 72202038310 (149,992,946)

150,000,950 (8,004) -

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences
arising from tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty of realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at 31
March 2020, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$2,390,000,000 (2019: approximately HK$2,233,000,000). The tax
losses have no expiry date and are yet to be agreed by the Inland
Revenue Department.

R EAR AT BB ARKERR & &
HAEBREND  WAREERESE
FFEAZEREERIELEREEE -
2020538310 ZREBZRABRRIE
/& 48 49 72,390,000,0003 7T (20194 : 4
2,233,000,0007% 7T) o 7 I8 &5 18 i & 2 #7
B > BAEFREER: o

BHES 2019/20 & 3R
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13. Property, plant and equipment 13. % - R RERE 13. % - WRERE @

150

13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Building Building
services Information services Information
Buildings Hotel ~ and support technology Centres Leasehold  Furniture and Motor Buildings Hotel ~ and support technology Centres Leasehold  Furniture and Motor
held for rental building facilities facilities equipment  improvements equipment vehicles Total held for rental building facilities facilities equipment  improvements equipment vehicles Total
BTHHE EEHHR
el £ AT XERE  EAMERNE iRt BEMHR  FRERE g5 st RRLEET BT SRl EAREERN miRE  EEMHR  GRERE ] st
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
#n #n #n A1 A #n AR A #n AT #1 #1 AT #1 #1 AT #1 AT
(note (ii)) (note (i)
(HgkGi) (ki)
31 March 2020 202038310 31 March 2019 019%38310
A3 March 2019and  R2019F3831H R At 1 April 2018; ROIBELRIR !
Gl WI9ERIR Cost iz IWIBIG  EWI 124686456 CGOSTMS 60824 BB TSI LIS 5APTENASS
Cost e ISR 2932 N26A301T1 2323722 60B8625A 171485488 193484489 930137 5760432949 J—— BirE
Accumulated BitiE depreciaton (L077994356)  (B3374676) (115546958)  (231615486) (60886254  (48368583) (1535603 (888484)  (2784030400)
depreciation (1155,137,321)  (89,330,010) (1,164904,220)  (222,077319)  (60,886,254)  (59,526,108)  (138,444,935) (622,470) (2,890,926,637)
Net carrying amount e 2479,129,620 191563236 69,139,500 18992179 = 97,766,710 52,696,323 49,667 2909737035
Netcarrying amount ~ BREIFE 2,401986,455 185,607,902 99,445,951 15,157,403 - 111,961,380 55,039,554 307,667 2,869,506,312
At 1 April 2018, R0IBELRIR
At T April 2019, RN19ELRIR net of accumulated NKREsHE
net of accumulated MREstE depreciation 2479129620 191,563,236 69,139,500 18992179 = 97,768,710 52,696,323 449,667 2909737035
depreciation 2,401986,455 185,607,902 99,445,951 15,157,403 - 111,961,380 55,039,554 307,667 2,869,506,312 Additions FE _ . 30,663713 1476022 B 28682433 23362082 93,164,250
Additions HE - - 13,351,343 6,612,928 - 29,085,900 53,563,167 - 102,613,338 Depreciation provided ~ ZEUEHERHE
Depreciation provided ~ EMFHRERE during the year (77,142,965) (5,955,334) (9.357.262) (5,310,798) = (14277.110) (20,463,147) (1620000 (132,648616)
during the year (77,142,965) (5955,334)  (12,235,670) (5,294,727) - (16709271)  (18,115,517) (142,000)  (135,595,484) Disposal e R R R R (210453) (535,704) (746,357)
Disposal write-off HE /5 . . (932,100) . . (260,580) (366,902) - (1,559,582)
At 31 March 2019, 019536318
At 31 March 2020, R2020E3/318 » net of accumulated NBEstinE
net of accumulated MREsHTE depreciation 2,401,986,455 185,607,902 99,445,991 15,157,403 = 111,961,380 55,039,954 307,667 2869506312
depreciation 2,324,843 490 179,652,568 99,629,524 16,475,604 - 124,077,629 90,120,302 165,667 2,834,964,584
At 31 March 2019: R019E3A318 :
At 31 March 2020: R2020EAIE Cost A 3957123776 274931912 1264350171 231,234,722 60,886,254 171,485,488 193,484,489 930137 5760432949
Cost Bk 3B 2SI I26T04N  23T800 60824 200299806 2455957199 930,137 5860323428 Accumulted BirE
Accumulated [itiE depreciation (1,155,137,321) (89.330010) (1164904220 (222077319) (60,886,254) (59.524,108)  (138444939) (622470)  (2890,926,637)
depreciation (1232,280,286)  (95,285,344) (1,177,139,890)  (227,304,726)  (60,886,254)  (76,222,377)  (155,475,497) (764,470)  (3,025,358,844)
Net carrying amount BEE 2,401,986,455 185,607,902 99,445,991 15,157,403 o 111,961,380 55,039,954 307,667 2869506312
Net carrying amount RE3E 2,324,843 490 179,652,568 99,629,524 16,475,604 - 124,077,629 90,120,302 165,667 2,834,964,584
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13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No.
8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company for a
term of 50 years at a lump sum initial premium of HK$1,000 and an annual
rent of an amount equal to 3% of the rateable value of the said Lot from
time to time.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with
the immediate holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No.
8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (the “Cyberport Portion”) is sub-leased to
the Company from the immediate holding company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land granted.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship Centre and
Technology Centre funded by government grant and used for the purpose
of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2020, the fair value of the buildings held for rental
(together with the associated building services and support facilities)
amounted to HK$7,012 million (2019: HK$6,956 million). The aggregate
carrying value of such assets amounted to HK$2,424 million (2019:
HK$2,501 million). The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together
with the associated buildings services and support facilities) as at 31
March 2020 was determined based on a valuation carried out by Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent professional valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated
building services and support facilities) falls within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy and is determined using the income capitalisation
approach by discounting the expected rental income using a capitalisation
rate adjusted for the quality and location of the buildings.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

13. % - HWBRERE @

MysE :

0]

(i)
(iii)

(iv)

72000658220 » EBAHEBRFHEZEE
B A B — 0B (L S Hk A SR AR 7 P 3t B
896957 Z it » — M T HHE 41,0008
7T ERARASE > MEFENHASEEME
R _E it B B A FE 2R 2= AN AR (E3% ©

7220006F5 8 24H » AABEERIERAF
SIU—BDMEWE > B AABRER
R AT T TE KM 28 79 3 ER89695%
Heh—#otith (TEEEAED ) » BAX
I -

ZERBFAUNEMRBE LM o

PO RET BBF A EEBL AINEE
BEZEEERPOMBHRFOZRE

R2020F3831H > FELHIBF (ER
R B TR AT BRI ZAREE
2701218 7 70 (20194F © 69.561% 78 7t) ©
ZEBEZIRMBEA22:EHB 7T (2019
F 125018 7T) - ZERELEBT (B
[EIAERE 2 12 FARFS L IR 3R ) 12202043
B3 HZ AABENIREE L EGE
SHERYEEER (F8) BRARETZ
HEETE °

FEHTRT (EREBZBTRERS
BRI 2 AABEBRAABESRD
2E=MR o HRABAASEARER
BEARAEREMET 2 TR R R
B EA LRGBS R
HE -

14,
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Leases 4. AE
The Group as a lessee AEBEEAEATEA
The Group has lease contracts for office premises, office equipment, NEERESEFFERANMAEYE A
information technology facilities and storage area used in its EREREANERMNETRIIEHES
operations. Lease of office premises has a lease term of six years, while o WMAEYENHERATF > MRAE
office equipment, information technology facilities and storage area B B RFEEENHEERA A
have lease terms of five years. There are several lease contracts that F o AEREFIBHIBEHF O S EHE IR
include variable lease payments, which are further discussed below. NHEESH » EETSE—Damik o
(a)  Right-of-use assets () FEHREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the AEENEAREEZ REERERN
movements during the year are as follows: EET -
Information
Office Office technology Storage
premises equipment facilities area Total
WAEME MAERE BNRERE H#EE st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
As at 1 April 2019 2019548180 7,382,087 570,020 285,975 = 8,238,082
Additions B - 157,754 - 126,662 284,416
Depreciation charge TERY (1,554,120) (188,672) (95,325) (77,946) (1,916,063)
Asat31March2020  $2020£E3731H 5,827,967 539,102 190,650 48,716 6,606,435
BRES 2019/20 3R
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14. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

14. A8 @

FERERAEBEA (@)
(b) HE&ER

HESEZREERENEHNT

HK$
BT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2019 2019548 1 HZBREE 8,486,897
New leases mHEE 284,416
Accretion of interest recognised during the year FRER 2T EI1gE 154,787
Payments NETY (2,029,560)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 202063831 H 2 R EE 6,896,540
Analysed into: DA
Current portion TRENER 1,941,181
Non-current portion IEREIL D 4,955,359
6,896,540
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 30(a) HEEGEZ IO NELESITRRE
to the consolidated financial statements. MizE30(a) I EE ©
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (c) MIEFZTMESEHEIZSRENT
are as follows:
2020
HK$
BT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAaENE 154,787
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EREEETERS 1,916,063
Expense relating to short-term leases and BERIFEEATE B R ER T HEA
other leases with remaining lease terms ended 120203831 HE 2 A SEAERY
on or before 31 March 2020 (included in public HMHEZXH GFAAR
mission activities expenses) fEEEBISZ H) 2,529,351
Variable lease payments not included in the Tt AHES G2 EHEE
measurement of lease liabilities (included in T GIAEMKE T H)
other operating expenses) 182,335
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBmPHER 2 EEEE 4,782,536

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

(d)

(e)

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

14. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

iR MR RN

14. THE @)
SEEEAEREAAN (@)

Variable lease payments (d) FIEBEMR
The Group has a lease contract for an office equipment AEEIE—HBRAERENEES
that contains variable payments based on the meter rate of 4 EREZREEIMTENAEE
additional printout. The term is negotiated by management for HET BN EAR o ZIEREHER
the office equipment that is used to print without steady usage. EBrtAET BN EEERAEHWHA
Management's objective is to align the lease expense with the EREETE  BEEZENEEHEE
additional printout. The following provides information on the X HEREINMNTENEAEETE o TRIZMH
Group's variable lease payments, including the magnitude in ERAAEENTEBEENRZER
relation to fixed payments: BEARABENRZBE :
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
ERANEN B EATRR st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Fixed rent EEME 156,000 - 156,000
Variable rent only EXNAEEE - 63,915 63,915
156,000 63,915 219,915
In addition, the Group leased a warehouse which contains a o REEERA—EER 0 HHEY
variable lease payment term that is based on the Group's storage BERBELAERTEE NS EKMER
per carton box in the warehouse. The amount of the variable FEMETENR A E M RBER
lease payments recognised in profit or loss for the current year MAFENHETEERTRIZE
for the lease is HK$118,420. THE (IR #A118,42087T °
The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 25(c) to the (e) FMHENREMLEBEEREMBRER

consolidated financial statements.

M 5E25(c) R R ©

BHES 2019/20 & 3R
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14.

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain buildings (note 13) in Hong Kong under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases also require
the tenants to pay a security deposit. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was HK$257,235,797 (2019: HK$261,971,587),
details of which are included in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

14.

HE @

HEEEAEEA
AEERELEHEZHBAETEET
BF 13 c HERRTEXRELX
TRES AEEBRERRIZ2HES K
A #257,235,79778 7T (20194 © 261,971,587
Br) > BREBEN SRR

REREHR - AERRZEEBFFTIIHAE]
BN EAEN R RN RITIREE
R0

2020 2019

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 227,155,630 195,598,378
After one year but within two years —FRBEMFERN 130,144,148 116,667,752
After two years but within three years WEBEBE=FR 66,130,531 47,618,780
After three years but within four years —FBEBINERN 15,430,218 16,775,545
After four years but within five years WEBERERN 9,538,220 =
After five years AFE 49,965,009 -
498,363,756 376,660,455

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

15. Cyberport macro fund investments

iR MR RN

15. HBERBAEETRE

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT B
Equity investments designated at fair value  ISERAAEBETAEM
through other comprehensive income 2EREZRERE
- Unlisted equity investments, at fair value —JEEmRAKLE  BAREE 91,921,406 44,713,898
Debt investment at fair value through BAREBESAEBEZ
profit or loss BFHRE
- Unlisted debt investment, at fair value —ELMEBEE  RANEE 7,846,694 10,152,211
99,768,100 54,866,109

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not recognise any
dividend income (2019: Nil) from the equity investments held at the end
of the reporting period.

The above debt investment was a hybrid contract consisting of a bond
and an embedded derivative. It was mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable
start-ups, the Group has launched the CMF for Hong Kong-based
digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of HK$200 million,
the CMF aims to accelerate the growth of digital technology start-ups.
As an investment fund that targets to co-invest in Cyberport digital
entrepreneurs with other private and public investors as seed to Series
A stage funding, the CMF also aims to encourage the development of a
venture capital ecosystem for start-ups in Hong Kong.

HRAEERDZEREBRBIEE - L
MR AR E AR HES ISR QA A BESTA
Ht W o

REE2020F3831HIEEE » AEBITE
KRB EHARFIFAENRERE Z M
BB (20194 : ) o

FREBRESBESFRRANITETAAR
P REEH o HEGaR DB RANEE
STIABHZ ERMEE  RRAHGHRERM
BUIHERSINAERFIE

RE—IMATEBE T ERAIEEZR
LR REER2017FE AT BEIBAIER
RMEIHEBRERFERESE - BIEBREAE
BEEPIRKREBEA2EE T > SEEMRELS
BHRRI B FEERE - (FAEEEEMMAR
AHKEBEEGHFRENEIE BB E XA
WIS RMEE T - BISEBRERIFEETTIA
REEEBNVRIERERREARKREERIR

15 o
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RE SRR
16. Investments in securities 16. HBHERE
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Financial assets at amortised cost IR EHRL AT BR Y R 84,074,954 70,830,649
Current assets MMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost IR AT BR Y SR - 151,266,273
Investments at fair value through profit or loss A MEEFTABEZBE 708,251,929 529,197,175
708,251,929 680,463,448
s 792,326,883 751,294,097

(a)

Financial assets at amortised cost

() WEBHMATIRZ EHMEE

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Listed fixed interest debt securities in  &#&_FHBEIEF BERHBS
Hong Kong 84,074,954 222,096,922
The net book amount is analysed as REFEDTUWT :
follows:
Maturing over one year R—E L EEIER 84,074,954 70,830,649
Maturing within one year R—FAEIHA - 151,266,273
84,074,954 222,096,922
Market value of listed debt securities EHEHEEEZHE 86,550,506 222,235,600
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iR MR RN

(b) Investments at fair value through profit or loss

16.

HERE @

(b) BARBEFARZZIRE

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT Bt
Listed fixed interest debt securities: THEERNEERES -

- In Hong Kong —HBEN 249,367,429 191,439,070
- Outside Hong Kong — &HBEN 351,773,574 248,081,875

Unlisted but quoted fixed interest debt  JE_ETH{B R HRBEE N BEFSE
securities 107,110,926 89,676,230
708,251,929 529,197,175

17. Trade receivables 17. FEURBRFR

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables FEUSBRRR 19,829,455 11,047,174
Impairment BB (48,507) (60,908)
19,780,948 10,986,266

The credit period given to customers is generally O to 30 days. The

Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables

to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly

by senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or

receivables are non-interest-bearing.

receivables are as follows:

other credit enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

MTERZEEHR—MRAB0EIRX - £EE
A B R AR 2 H R U o] 2 FEMGRRIR LU (R &
BEfERERE - BAEGRHESREEREER
FER o REB T EREBUEREHITEE
IR R T M E S5 A i - FEUGR

RABRE o

FEWERTCRIE R BRI T !

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT Bt
At beginning of year E4) 60,908 815,509
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) HEDRERE (fiske) 48,507 48,658
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) BEIRERE (M:E6) (60,908) (803,259)
At end of year FXR 48,507 60,908
BIREHS 2019/20 3R
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AT IRRMIEE
17. Trade receivables (continued) 17. FEURERFR (@)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using REBNERES BHACABEERETAE
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision DT LGTEEREERIE o BEXDLRE
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer BEHELUE BMZMIBMUE « ERER
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, BREA LR ERBEREMERZE
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of BERBBEHE) 22EFTADIMENZ
credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the BIAREETE o ZetE RIS R
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable EREBEEURNRE BRI ESERME
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date AEH » BRIRRRARERLERRTEAZ &
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic BAFEN o —fRiMs > EWERFEINE LB
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for B—FERZREINITEE > BT LU -
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the LUR 8151175 R 74 52 [ FE UK AR 0 (68 P #3848 4B B
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: ZIEERRER
As at 31 March 2020 $2202043H831H
Past due
A
Less than One to three Over three
Current one month months months Total
ENHA L—EAR —E=@AR BiB=EA Eih
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Expected credit loss rate TEHAEBEE=X 0% 0% 0% 1.63% 0.24%
Gross carrying amount (HK$) BREARE (BrT) 12,610,432 2,207,493 2,040,480 2,971,050 19,829,455
Expected credit losses (HK$) — FEHRfEE/E (BT) - - - 48,507 48,507
As at 31 March 2019 F2201943831H
Past due
BEA
Less than One to three Over three
Current one month months months Total
BDEA DR—EA —Z={E8 BiB=EA 4t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Expected credit loss rate TEHAEBEE=XR 0% 0% 0% 7.42% 0.55%
Gross carrying amount (HK$)  BRE4&1E (B7T) 8,324,098 1,173,440 728,664 820,972 11,047,174
Expected credit losses (HK$) ~ FEHRfEE/E (B) = = - 60,908 60,908
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18. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

iR MR RN

18. FAfTRRIE - RS RHEMBEUTRIR

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments FAf IR 2,882,951 4,661,026
Lease incentives HEER 19,649,943 =
Prepayments and deposits paid for the TEBAYE ~ BB RREEE M
purchase of items of property, plant and ZHENRIEBEREE
equipment 16,600,613 12,940,534
Deposits paid for premises leasing MYERER N2 iZE 685,008 685,008
Deposit paid for Cyberport Macro Fund FREEREREESREM TS
investment - 14,129,730
Other deposits Hiz s 2,307,583 1,812,956
Other receivables HithpE W =g 7,387,921 14,525,779
49,514,019 48,755,033
Analysed into: DA
Non-current portion JETRENER D 22,999,823 27,755,272
Current portion SRENER 26,514,196 20,999,761
49,514,019 48,755,033

Impairment of deposits and other receivables

‘BE R EMERRIEZ #HE

The carrying amount of deposits and other receivables approximated
to their fair value as at 31 March 2020 and 2019. Their recoverability
was assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors, and the
expected credit losses as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 were considered

20204 520194638310 » e R HAFE
WRIBZ REEAEAAGEBEES - H7
WO 2E B/ A ZEER RS »
20205 F20196E3831 A 2 FEARE BB H

to be minimal.

RAAER o

BHES 2019/20 & 3R
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19. Cash and bank balances

19. RERIPITEF

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash and bank balances REMIRITHETT 109,010,217 163,526,258
Non-pledged time deposit with an original RESKRIFEADR
maturity of less than three months when =@ B Z IR EHER
acquired 308,565,862 125,597,600
Non-pledged time deposits with original RESERIBEA=ES
maturity of more than three months when P EZ BN EHRER
acquired - 358,873,875
417,576,079 647,997,733

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one months and one year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earns interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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RITIRESREEHRITERFELOLBFIR
BREF B - EHEREFAERZBIRIR
EFRME » FRABRNF—ERE—FF
% WHURBZ EHERF BRI S o i
TREERERERFALRL EENTERE

EERFZIRIT -

20. Other payables and accruals

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
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20. HfthEMRERESER

2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5F BT BT
Contract liabilities BHEE (a) 2,528,683 1,979,225
Other payables HARETRRIE (b) 1,387,502 5,870,554
Accruals fEst&E A 83,753,225 118,221,334
Receipt in advance FaEIE 2,424,808 6,488,582
Government grants =k 2,555,800 -
Provisions 3= 8,782,332 15,599,100
101,432,350 148,158,795
Notes: HisE
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (@ BRREFENT
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
2020%3H31H 201943H31H 2018548 1H
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Short-term advances received A% P UWER 2 5SS HEEA R
from customers
Income from hotel operation BEEEIRA 2,528,683 1,979,225 3,302,947

The increase in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to the increase
in short-term advances received from customers at the end of the year.
The decrease in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due to the decrease
in short-term advances received from customers at the end of the prior
year.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of
three months.

2020 EHRMEEN - TEHR AR
WER 2 SR ER BRI SE R AB AOFT 2L © 122019
FanaERd  TEHRAZTRIRERZ
RN EEERMLDPAE

HMENRIERRE - TIHRA=EA -

BHES 2019/20 & 3R
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e ERRMIEE
21. Rental and other deposits 21. HEKkHEMZE
Included in rental deposits are amounts of HK$49,888,836 (2019: e OEBEIEN—FRENZHIB
HK$57,040,472) which are not expected to be settled within one year. 49,888,836 7T (20194F : 57,040,47287T) ©
22. Development maintenance fund 22. BEEEES
It represents a fund received by the Group in accordance with the ZEESEAEBREBERALLAR  BEE
terms of a project agreement entered into among the Company, the f&/AE] ~ HKCADL ~ BB EUIEE N B RAE]
immediate holding company, HKCADL, Pacific Century Cyberworks (RBENBRBMARLT) REMBBRA
Limited (now renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited on 17 B 10200055 8 17H P28 5] 2 BB B 51 8115
May 2000 (the "Project Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project Agreement, =Z (T5t8E)) 2 BERMEERZEE R
the purpose of the fund is for upkeep and maintenance of the common Botilineg  ZBEESREREREEM
telecommunications, media and information technology facilities HREAZERAZHASEM - ERREAR
available to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared Cyberport facilities”). B (TSNS BHEBRNE) ©
Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs of the RIBAEEZ GTER > REEERAEENU
acquired assets will be transferred from the Development Maintenance EE#fE  BEEBEEZRNANREER#ER
Fund (the "DMF") account to the Capital Reserve account in accordance = (TZEREECES) RPEEZELRMHEE
with the Group's accounting policy. BRA o
During the year, the Shared Cyberport facilities of HK$6,612,928 (2019: F AN & 58 566129288 5T (20194 ©
HK$1,476,022) were acquired and funded by the DMF. Accordingly, this 1,476,0227870) Z$EBHEARMEHEE
amount has been transferred from the DMF to the Capital Reserve HEESHETRMEES - At » ZFENIE
account. EREREEESHBETEARBIRS o
23. Share capital 23. &7
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Issued and fully paid: BEITERERE -
300,000,002 (2019: 300,000,002) 300,000,0028% (20194 :
ordinary shares 300,000,00208) & iEAG 300,000,002 300,000,002

On 28 February 2018, the HKSAR Government announced a funding
injection of HK$300 million to Cyberport for the new initiatives in
respect of strengthening the support to its tenants/incubatees, and
promoting the development of e-Sports in Hong Kong, as covered in the
Financial Secretary’'s 2018/19 Budget Speech.

On 12 September 2018, 300,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
$1 each were issued and allotted to the immediate holding company in
consideration of the injection of an aggregate sum of HK$300 million
into the Company.
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2018528 28H > H KB Al REXR
2018/ 19F E (MTAEZE) F » HBRFEIR
FEMRBEBERTENREBT > UBEEEE
EITINRSZEERA RIS AR Z HiaH
WIEEBHRERE

2018598 12H » AR B BEZEERAE]
2447 16 A2 2£300,000,0000 R EE1B T Z
ZIER > FARKAREARBEIRETZ
K& -

24.

25.

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of HK$284,416 and HK$284,416,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for office
equipment and storage area (2019: Nil).

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
2020

24,

25.

iR MR RN

(B
FEBPAEERBREEE SR
BH2TINEARERBE o

IrEREMERME

() FEIFRERB
RER » ZEBRMAERERHEE
B HERHEERREEEZIERS
REBERAEEED R 5284,61687TK
2844167877 (20195 1 &) o

(b) FREEIHFFELEEREED
20204

Government
grants included
in other payables

and accruals Lease liabilities

st AEfhAE (S
RIBRETER
Z B FHEEhE HEaRE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 31 March 2019 1201963315 - -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 PIRE B R S 2R
Bl E - 8,486,897
At 1 April 2019 (restated) R2019F4818 (F5!) - 8,486,897
Changes from financing cash flows RERSREE 2,555,800 (1,874,773)
New leases MEE - 284,416
Interest expense FMEZH - 154,787
Interest paid classified as operating DIEAKEREREZENAFE
cash flows - (154,787)
At 31 March 2020 72020 3H31H 2,555,800 6,896,540
5 2019/20 F3R
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25. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

(continued)

25. IREHRTRERMWF @

(b) REEBFIELERRES @

2019 20195
Government
grants included Obligations
in other payables under a
and accruals finance lease
ST AE AR
IR fEET E A
Z BB E REHEERE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April 2018 2018 FE4B1H 320,035 1,577,476
Changes from financing cash flows HMEBRESMEEH (320,035) (1,577,476)

At 31 March 2019

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows is as follows:

522019438 31H

() HEZRERHBE

AR REREXRZBEERT MY

MR -

2020

HK$

BT

Within operating activities EREEHA 2,866,473
Within financing activities ERMEEHA 1,874,773
4,741,246
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(a)

(b)

26. Commitments

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group had the following capital commitments at the

end of the reporting period.

iR MR RN

26. I

() FEERBSHREUTESEK

~ o
=

2020 2019
HK$ HK$

BT BT

Contracted, but not provided for [EHESEESZT:] 68,100,956 75,501,010

Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019

The Group leases its information technology facilities and office

premises under operating lease arrangements. Leases for these

facilities and property are negotiated for terms ranging from one

to six years.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

(b) H2019E3B3NAZREHE X
1%
FEERBEKEHEHFAEEAR
EREAEFE  HEZERER
MEPMZRTEZ BN F—FERET

&=
5 °

FR2019F3831H » ZEBRIEARA
Bl S BN AR RBEHEE TR
EREE RO

2019
HK$
BT

Within one year

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

— R

3,870,268

E_EEERF (BEEEME) 6,627,489

10,497,757

BHES 2019/20 & 3R
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27. Related party transactions

(a)

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the HKSAR
via The Financial Secretary Incorporated. In accordance with
revised HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures issued by the HKICPA,
government-related entities and their subsidiaries, directly or
indirectly controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by the Government of the HKSAR are defined as related parties
of the Group. On that basis, related parties include the immediate
holding company and its subsidiaries (other than the Company),
other government-related entities and their subsidiaries, other
entities and corporations in which the Group is able to control or
exercise significant influence and key management personnel of
the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, approximately 3%
(2019: 3%) of the Group's revenue was rental income, building
management income and other facilities income derived from
the Government of the HKSAR and other government-related
entities. All these services are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Group's pricing policy.

The balances with the immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Details of the compensation of the key management personnel
of the Group in respect of their services rendered to the Group
are disclosed in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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27. BAEARS

(a)

KABHBBRERNEBYEEF
RZEZBZEHER - RESEGAQ
GETR 2B BB R ERF245%
RS IREZRE > NREBRER
FEZENEEES - £RERHEH
ERFEZHAEREERENER
8 BHREARER 2T - RIE
ZER > WS REERERAER
HIFB AT (RRBFRIN ~ EfthEATF
HAERRENBAR - NEEAEE
RIS AN EAT B HthEiExE
FURAERZTEZEEAS °

B E2020F3831HIEFE» RBE
BREEF;EMBFEBERZ
HEWA ~ BFEBRAKREMZHE
WA RGBT A Z3% (20194 :
3%) o FTAZERBIIEEREKB
R AEEZ EBBURET °

BEBEERABRARNB AR ZLE
FRITBEIET « RERIZEREE -

KAEBRTEEEASAREBREHR
BB 2 S B EGRS M R
KM EET 8% EE o

28.

Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2020

Financial assets

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
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28. BERBSHEHMIA

KRR TENREMARZIREEDT ¢

20205%3H31H

TREE

Financial
assets at

fair value
through other
comprehensive

Financial assets at fair

income value through profit or loss
BARBETA
2 EkES HARBESABEZ
SREE EREE
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
Equity designated Debt amortised
investments as such investment cost Total
_ AT AR .
RAEE AZER BHRE ZEREE a5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Deferred rental receivables  IEEMEWFS - - - 7,274,144 7,274,144
Cyberport Macro Fund YIEBREREELEE
investments 91,921,406 - 7,846,694 - 99,768,100
Investments in securities EHKRE - 708,251,929 - 84,074,954 792,326,883
Trade receivables FRURER - - - 19,780,948 19,780,948
Financial assets included in st ATBAFIE &K
prepayments, deposits and  EERFIEZ
other receivables SHEE - - - 11,914,566 11,914,566
Amounts due from fellow EWREZKBARTE
subsidiaries - - - 3,293,234 3,293,234
Cash and bank balances BERiBTEE - - - 417,576,079 417,576,079
91,921,406 708,251,929 7,846,694 543,913,925 1,351,933,954
Financial liabilities ERaE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REERATIRZ
EREE
HK$
BT
Trade payables FEATERRR 41,976,221
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals SARMENTEREGNERZSHEE 91,473,312
Rental and other deposits HekEMZEE 94,797,218
Amount due to the immediate holding company ERBERERARZIE 254,293,578
Lease liabilities HEBE 6,896,540
489,436,869
5 2019/20 F3R 169
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e ERRMIEE e M ERRMIEE
28. Financial instruments by category (continued) 28. HERNAPHNEMIE (@ 29. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 29. EMTHAZAARAEBERAAEBES
i 4
31 March 2019 201943831H instruments R

AEBTRTAZEREERAAMEE (RE

Financial assets SEEE The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably EREAABESEBEEEZEMIT AR @
Fma;tc;aatiraj;e:z approximate to fair values, are as follows: TS s
through other
comprehensive Financial assets at fair ) )
income value through profit or loss Carrying amounts Fair values
BAREESA EREE NAEE
Hit2ERGEZ ZARBEFABREZ
ﬂﬂig%ﬁ:ﬁgi }“ﬁg};ggm 2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
‘ Financel BT BT BT BT
Mandatorily assets at
Equity designated Debt amortised
investments as such investment cost Total
NI Financial assets STHEE
LA L3 |HsT A e 4Eh %@E ) _ _
RARE BEHSEAZEH BBRE ZEREE st Equity investments designated e 2 (B
‘HK_$ HK_$ ‘HK_$ \HK_$ HK_$ at fair value through other sAEMEME
7L 7L A7 7L A7 comprehensive income W > R AR 91,921,406 44,713,898 91,921,406 44,713,898
Debt investment at fair value BARBESTA
] el ol BILEES - - - RS gl through profit or loss BHZEHRYE 7,846,694 10152211 7,846,694 10152211
Cyberport Macro Fund YEEREREESRE . -
ymvepstmems 44713898 ~ 10152211 ~ 54.866.109 Investments in securities AR E 792,326,883 751,294,097 794,802,435 751,432,775
Investments in securities EHRE - 529,197,175 - 222,096,922 751,294,097
Trade receivables FEURARRR - - - 10,986,266 10,986,266 892,094,983 806,160,206 894,570,535 806,298,884
Financial assets included in STATERE ek
prepayments, deposits and HitfElEZ
other receivables LEHMBE = = = 17,724,883 17,724,883 The Group has assessed that the fair values of deferred rental REFDMLIELEEKIES « FEURERRR « 5T
Amount due from a fellow A EEN VAR receivables, trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, ATBIEIE ~ WS REMERES SME
subsidiary - - B 261,000 261,000 deposits and other receivables, cash and bank balances, balances with EBEeKETET  BERMBATIRE
Cash and bank balances BARRTEE - = - 647,997733 647,997733 fellow subsidiaries and the immediate holding company, trade payables, BN T 4568 ~ FE(TRESN ~ st A H fhpE
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, rental and THIBREASERZSHEE - S REM
44,713,878 SRR 1015221 7071567,753 L4A633.243 other deposits, and a deferred rental payable approximate to their e MIELEENESZ A BEEEER
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these BERE > TEARZES T ENGERNTIER o
Financial liabilities SRaE instruments.
Financial The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are SHEBELSHEBBEZ AABEUNREZEE
L\at?\tlt\es at included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in FE (CRipal BB ERIN) BT SRS
amortised cost a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or PR TENESREALRE o T8 ERIRER
HEER AR liquidation sale. The following method and assumptions were used to WEEHAREE !
TRIAE estimate the fair value:
HK$
s The fair values of the lease liabilities have been calculated by HEaEZ AR BEILEAREENESRE
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently LEH s ZERGE ARG TERENTAZF
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining K BIEHARRIBSRERIRMETE - B
Trade payables FE(TER=R 28,514,375 maturities. The changes in fair values as a result of the Group’s own EEAKRSR2020FE3831HIEEES ERKE
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals HAHMENSBERESER SHEE 136,566,404 non-performance risk for lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020 were BB A R B E £ A R EEEBHTE
t insignificant. R °
Rental and other deposits HEREMES 82,132,286 assessed to be insignifican AEEKR
Amount due to the immediate holding company EREEERATZIE 254,293,578
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary ENRRNEARFIE 192,321
Deferred rental payable ELENES 222775
501,921,739
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29.

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2020 has
been estimated using the market-based valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The valuation requires the Directors to determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy,
and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as price to sales
("P/S") multiple, for each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable
company by sales measure. The Directors believe that the estimated
fair value resulting from the valuation technique, which is recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
change in fair value, which is recorded in other comprehensive income,
is reasonable, and that it was the most appropriate value at the end of
the reporting period. The fair values of the remaining unlisted equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as at 31 March 2020 have been estimated using the recent
market transaction price.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2019 have been
estimated using the recent market transaction price.

The fair values of an unlisted debt investment at fair value through
profit or loss as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 have been
estimated using a binomial tree pricing model based on assumptions
that are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the Directors to make estimates about the expected
future cash flows discounted at the interest. The Directors believe that
the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation technique, which
is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair value, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of listed debt investments are based on quoted market
prices.
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29.

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation
of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis
as at 31 March 2020 and 2019:

As at 31 March 2020

29.

iR MR RN

EMITARAZARBERAREES
R @)
LU 41220204 20193831 B £/t T

AfEZERTIREHAZBHEZERE
BERED

142020%F3831H

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Amount value to the input
HER* EAFTHRRBAGE Y& RABEHBAREBEZBRE
Unlisted equity Valuation P/S multiple of peers 2.2x 1% increase/decrease in multiple
investment multiples would result in increase/decrease
in fair value by HK$23,000/
HK$23,000
FFEMRAKRSE HEEE FIZETHIH(E 8L 2.21% BRI EF TR B A N EEE
./ 23,000 7T, 23,0008 7T
Discount for lack 20% 1% increase/decrease in discount

of marketability

RZ G REIE 278

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of
premiums and discounts determined by the Group that market
participants would take into account when pricing the investments.

would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$8,000/HK$8,000

EH L TERI%EERAABER
> /1% 118,000/ 7T, 8,000 7T

BREZHHERBEZITRErEREEH SRS

BEEARETEREE RN EERITES
LE
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29. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

As at 31 March 2020 (continued)

29. THITRAZAABERIABESE
B ()

122020E3831H (&)

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Amount value to the input
fEEHE EATAERBARBE 85 ARABEHBABREZHRE
Unlisted debt Binomial Credit spread 14.65% 1% increase/decrease in credit
investment tree pricing spread would result in decrease/
model increase in fair value by HK$16,000/
HK$16,000
JFEHEHKRE ZmERiR EERE EEEE LA TERIMERADE
EBZE
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Risk free rate

A RRIE

Risky rate

R =

Volatility

BB

&R 12 H016,0005 7T, 16,000
HBIT

0.38% 1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$1,000/HK$1,000

ERBAELA S TFEI%EERAR
BERL #h1,0005%7T 1,000
BT

15.03% 1% increase/decrease in risky rate
would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$16,000/
HK$16,000

BEBEFIZE EF R %R SR DB
BRI 18 1016,00077T 16,000
BT

61.42% 1% increase/decrease in volatility
would result in increase/decrease
in fair value by HK$16,000/
HK$16,000

WENE EF TR % ERAAEE
#hn i/ 16,0007 7T 16,0007
7T

29. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

As at 31 March 2019

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MR RN

29. EMIAZAABERAAEESE
R ()

142019%F3831H

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Amount value to the input
HEHE BAROIERRH A SR #&E NABEHRABEZBRE
Unlisted debt investment Binomial Credit spread 13.12% 1% increase/decrease in credit
tree pricing spread would result in decrease/
model increase in fair value by HK$24,000/
HK$25,000
L EBRE “EER HEE EHEE LA TRI%HERARE
EEE

Risk free rate

ERENE

Risky rate

JR B =R

Volatility

LES

&R /1802400057, 25,000
BT

2.07% 1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$166,000/
HK$184,000

EERFIEEF  TE%EHER
NAEERLD 1810166,000788
75,/ 184,000 7T

15.19% 1% increase/decrease in risky rate
would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$24,000/
HK$25,000

REBFE A TERI%EERANE
&RV /18 1024,0007 7T /25,000
BT

48.13% 1% increase/decrease in volatility
would result in increase/decrease
in fair value by HK$1,000/HK$1,000

WENE EF TR ERAREE
90,/ 1,000/ 7T 1,000 7T
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29.

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2020

29. ESMITAZARBERAREBESE 29.

& (&)

ARBEESER
TRETTEREMTIEZ ANBENES

i
BARBENEZEE
14202053H31H

Fair value measurement using

ARBERAUATEESE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEAXAHRE EAFATHE
JERETIZIRE B A B BMABE
(B—4R) (BB=4) (B=%) Hazt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Equity investments IEERANEE
designated at fair AEMEE
value through other Wz RAEKRE
comprehensive income - 89,486,760 2,434,646 91,921,406
Debt investment BARBERA
at fair value through BanZEBERE
profit or loss - - 7,846,694 7,846,694
Investments in securities FEHEE 601,141,003 107,110,926 - 708,251,929
601,141,003 196,597,686 10,281,340 808,020,029
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Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 March 2019

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

AR IR

VPN
72 ==

R ()

29. EMIAZAABERAAEESE

RARBESNEZEE : (B

2201953831

Fair value measurement using

RABEERBUTEENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEARAHER EAFAUERE
TR T IGERE [P 5672 LIPNE €72
(B—#) (B524R) (B=4R) st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Equity investments IEERRANER
designated at fair SFAHEMEE
value through other Wz RAKE
comprehensive income - 44,713,898 - 44,713,898
Debt investment BAREERA
at fair value through BanZBHRE
profit or loss - - 10,152,211 10,152,211
Investments in securities  BHIRHE 439,520,945 89,676,230 - 529,197,175
439,520,945 134,390,128 10,152,211 584,063,284
BIREHS 2019/20 3R
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29.

GBI

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 29.
instruments (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets (2019: Nil). The
movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 are as follows:

TMIAZARBERIABES
& (@)

BARBENEZEE : (8)

Epy ReMEENS > F—REE R
B EEEAAEESE (0196 &) o
B=RAZAREEFRETNT

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets at fair value through other wBAnBE AEMEER S
comprehensive income or profit or loss: NiEmZ EREE
At 1 April 4B 1H 10,152,211 6,221,450
Transfer from Level 2 during the year FERRE _REL 6,286,952 =
Transfer to Level 2 during the year FREAEZFE R - (6,221,450)
Total (loss)/gain recognised in the RixrEBmRERZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss (F518) / Unin4a%8 (2,305,517) 340,024
Total loss recognised in REMEER SR 2 B8 485
other comprehensive income (3,852,306) =
Purchase B - 9,812,187
At 31 March 38318 10,281,340 10,152,211

Liabilities measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2020

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2020.

As at 31 March 2019

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2019.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
financial liabilities (2019: Nil).
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BARBENEZARE:
142020538318

A E 0202093831 H I MAE AR A A E
BtESHEE-

2019%F3831H

AEER2019F3831 B EEAIRA LB
B2z emEaE -

FER> ieRaEms > S REE R8>
M EEEAABENE > NEEAREY
FE=MR (20194 : M|®) o

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise investments
in securities, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, a debt investment at fair value through
profit or loss and cash and bank balances. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to finance for the Group's
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
credit risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

All the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong, which management
believes are of high credit quality. The Group has policies in
place to evaluate credit risk when accepting new business and to
limit its credit exposure to individual customers.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 March. For listed debt investments, the
Group also monitors them by using external credit ratings. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

iR MR RN

MHBREEEBERER

(a)

MEBRARER
FERZIZERTAGEIRSFR
B BRARBESARMEEREZ
RAEKRE - BARBESABRZE
BREUKRFERIRTER - 252
RIEZTEZENEATERZEE
RIEEE -

FEBRTHTREEZTZRARAIE
ERE - RERE RBEZREEK
EER - EFRBERBEEESR
TEAERA R MR 2 B2 > AR o

EEmER
FEBMEREARREEEERBEF
BREEERAEERERFZES
TE2ERIEE - AEBEHEEER
DTz £ 5 R 2 F 8 AR
FEMEAZREBENEFZEER
B2 o

REEERFRTEERIIE
TRETERAABEERRZEE
FHEEkEEERR (E2REAH
BRHSH  BRIFEMERNBANHB
ZRANLE IR ER) > MUKRI3A
NBEZERDBEERNLE o st EHEF
REME » AEMIMERIEBEET
RIEITEEIE - FREVIBERATREE
ZIRMEABIE -
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

HERAREEEERBE @

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) () HMBRAKRERZR &)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) REREGERERIEERSEE (&)
As at 31 March 2020 F220204F3531H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B TEHA
EE8HE 2HEIE BRI
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PR — MR = MEER= 1E% Hast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Debt investment at fair value BARBEFABEZ
through profit or loss# BHREH 7,846,694 - - - 7,846,694
Investments in securities# BHREH 792,326,883 - - - 792,326,883
Trade receivables* JEUBR 0 - - - 19,829,455 19,829,455
Deferred rental receivables# EIErEW TR 4 7,274,144 - - - 7,274,144
Financial assets included in SPATBNRIE K
prepayments, deposits and HtfElIEZ
other receivables# ERBEH 11,914,566 - - - 11,914,566
Amounts due from fellow EWERITBARZE
subsidiaries — RRBH
- Not yet past due 3,293,234 - - - 3,293,234
Cash and bank balances REMRTHEE
- Not yet past due — HRBH 417,576,079 - - - 417,576,079
1,240,231,600 - - 19,829,455 1,260,061,055
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(continued)

(a)
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 30. HFHBEEEEBFREER (@)
Financial risk factors (continued) () HMBEAKER (&
Credit risk (continued) =ERRE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEEREFRIERSE ()
As at 31 March 2019 201983531 H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 &R
=EHE ZHREREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PEEE— e FEE= N7 K5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Debt investment at fair value BAREEFAERZ
through profit or loss# R EH 10,152,211 - - - 10,152,211
Investments in securities# EHLEH 751,294,097 - - - 751,294,097
Trade receivables* L BR =+ - - - 11,047,174 11,047,174
Deferred rental receivables# B S # 8,503,155 - - - 8,503,155
Financial assets included in STATEARE ek
prepayments, deposits and HitfElEE2
other receivables* ERBEE 17,724,883 - - - 17724883
Amount due from a fellow EWERMBARIE
subsidiary — HREER
- Not yet past due 261,000 = = = 261,000
Cash and bank balances REeMRTHEE
- Not yet past due — BREE 647,997,733 - - - 647997733
1,435,933,079 - - 11,047174 1,446,980,253
& For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified FAE B A ECRE A Z FEUER

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be

“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of
the financial assets is considered to be "doubtful”.

Details in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk

arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the

consolidated financial statements.

HMME > REREEEABZER
REREMBRRM T 7IREE ©

TREEZEEERETHAREHN
BiEEMBETnEMEEZEER
% B 42 T 53 LR AR 18 0 B AR AR
#IER) - BRIEHEEZEFEE
R TAI5E) ©

ARAEEBIEERRZ EERR ¥
1B RS BIRARMNEE 1 7THREE
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b ARSI
30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 30. HFFEEEEBRREER (@)
(continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (@) MHBRABEER @)
Equity price risk B (& = Bz
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity REREIER A E S A A EEEER
securities decrease as a result of changes in the value of ERE Sz BEEMEEE B o
underlying individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity K202053831H "EEEH K
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified BREREDERIEERANEES
as equity investments designated at fair value through other AHMEEWER 2 BRA%E 2 @RI
comprehensive income (note 15) as at 31 March 2020. TIRE (MisE15) ©
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% TRETHNRESHARTEREKIEEKX
change in the fair values of the equity investments to which the Az BRAKEEANBESEE0%
Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, (FREEMBSRFEAEE R AT
with all other variables held constant and before any impact on IR ER) ZBRE LD
tax. For the purpose of this analysis, the impact is deemed to be ms > BREERAARANEER
on the fair value reserve. EERE -
Carrying
amount of Change
investments in equity*
KEREE T E
HK$ HK$
T T
As at 31 March 2020 52202053831 H
Unlisted equity investments: JELEMRRAKE
- Equity investments designated — e A REBESTA
at fair value through other Hhemhlimz
comprehensive income ARG E 91,921,406 9,192,141
As at 31 March 2019 120194E3831H
Unlisted equity investments: JEEmRAKE -
- Equity investments designated — IEERAREESA
at fair value through other Hhemhime
comprehensive income i = 44,713,898 4,471,390
3 Excluding accumulated losses 2 NEIERFEE
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(a)

iR MR RN

30. MEEMEERERBER @)

Financial risk factors (continued) (@) MBRABEER @)
Liquidity risk TRENE &R MR
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its mEnEE RRIE A EEREEEDIE
current obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk ZBEAEH Rk - BEZ REES
management includes maintaining sufficient cash and the EREEaEAESERERAERE
availability of funding through operating cash flows and advance BERAB ZBREFRBRE R
from the immediate holding company. HEAEE °
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and AEBZBREREHEREAIRTER
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains ZREASER  BRERENRS
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in @E > UREERARERRESES
the short and longer term. Bk o
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at KEBNRSARBBRSARTIRMG
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual M2 EMERIREROT @
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2020
Repayable on
demand/less 1to Over
than 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
HEKREE
—&EYTF —ERE EME st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Trade payables FEFTERR 41,976,221 - - 41,976,221
Financial liabilities included in STAEMENTER
other payables and accruals EstBRZSHERE 91,473,312 - - 91,473,312
Rental and other deposits A kEMZE 44,908,382 21,643,443 28,245,393 94,797,218
Amount due to the immediate e ERERABNE
holding company 254,293,578 - - 254,293,578
Lease liabilities HEER 2,030,670 1,981,920 3,117,080 7,129,670
434,682,163 23,625,363 31,362,473 489,669,999
RS 2019/20 F1R
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 30.

(continued)

HERAREEEERBE @

(@) Financial risk factors (continued) () MEEAKAE (@&
Liquidity risk (continued) mEBEERR (&)
2019
Repayable on
demand/less 1to Over
than 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
BEREE/
—ENTF —EMEF MEN L ez
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Trade payables FEfTERTT 28,514,375 - - 28,514,375
Financial liabilities included in HAHMEMTIER
other payables and accruals EHEBzSMEE 136,566,404 - - 136,566,404
Rental and other deposits e kEMES 25,091,814 25,956,248 31,084,224 82,132,286
Amount due to the immediate
holding company I ERERARRE 254,293,578 - - 254,293,578
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary R RRNBABTIE 192,321 - - 192,321
Deferred rental payable ELECRS 46,900 46,900 128,975 222,775
444,705,392 26,003,148 31,213,199 501,921,739
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

31.

(a)

(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Currency risk

The Group's functional currency is HK$. The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily through investments in securities that are
denominated in another currency, being primarily United States
dollars (“USD"). As the HK$ is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between the
HK$ and the USD to be insignificant.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholder and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
year.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholder’s
equity. Management reviews the capital structure periodically
and manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31
March 2020 and 2019, the Group was in a net cash position.

Comparative amounts

As further explained in note 2.2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative

amounts in the consolidated financial statements were not restated

and continued to be reported under the requirements of the previous

standard, HKAS 17, and related interpretations.

30.

Sl

iR MR RN

BHERABREEBERRER @

() MBEBEER (&)
SRR
REBZNEGERBIT - AEEK
BZEBRBEERBUS—EE
(FERZETD) sHEZESFKRE - R
BRI  AEER A BTH
EnZENEXEFEBRIK

(b) BEHER

FEREXAEEZ TZARABRES
EMFEEE IS HMARRS
REIHR K H At D E /R > 1
MRRIERZ BARER  LURLVESE
PR o R BAEEZBE - BR
AR AR EE) o

RNEEZ BRI BER ZFTA
Do BEEERRANENEE > W
NERAEHAREAERE - AE®
1220204 K2201943831H 9 R R IR
EPREAR ©

EEEEF

BRic AW BREAM T2 2E— SRR k&
E 5220196481 BEBKETEMERMAE
BUBREERE 165 o RIBILFE » &5
MHBRERAZEBRBFLRED > MERR
BITRIER] ~ BEGSHERF 1758 B2
TETIR o
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iR MR RME iR MR RN

32. AATHBRAER
A AB B RER RS k> TR

32. Statement of financial position of the company 32. Statement of financial position of the company (continued) 32. ARFHB AR @

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
2020 2019 5T g
HK$ HK$
BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES IERBEE
Development maintenance fund BREEES 390,999,654 397,612,582
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IFRBEE Deferred rental payable EIEFE(TFES - 222,775
Property, plant and equipment M~ B RRE 2,834,964,584 2.869.506,312 Leren elilifes HEas 4,955,359 -
Right-of-use assets BREEE 6,606,435 -
Deferred rental receivables IEIEFEWFE & 7,274,144 8,503,155 Total non-current liabilities EREh A (E4EEE 395,955,013 397,835,357
Investments in securities BARRE 84,074,954 70,830,649
Investment in a subsidiary WEBABKRE 1 1 Net assets BEFE 3,337,767,867 3469,862,069
Prepayments and deposits SEINENEYRE 22,999,823 13,625,542 EQUITY T
Total non-current assets JERENEEALER 2,955,919,941 2,962,465,659 Shere caprtet . 200,000,002 080,002
Reserves (note) #E (M) 3,037,767,865 3,169,862,067
CURRENT ASSETS MEBEE
Inventories et 319,821 337411 Total equity AR 3,337,767,867 3,469,862,069
Trade receivables FE U BR R 19,780,948 10,986,266
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FB{I®IE - & K EhEW RIS 26,514,196 20,999,761
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEWERWB AR IS 3,293,234 261,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B A Bl 7R IE 96,590,998 57,477,503
Investments in securities AR E 708,251,929 680,463,448
Cash and bank balances RITRIREHE 417,492,361 647,997,733
Total current assets RENEBELERE 1,272,243,487 1,418,523,122
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Trade payables PEHBE 2R 41,976,221 28,514,375 Lee George LAM Victor NG Chi-keung
Other payables and accruals HtpE I IE R st &R 101,432,350 148,158,795 MRS REA
Rental and other deposits HELEMES 94,797,218 82,132,286 Director Director
Amount due to the immediate holding company FEf E151ER AT RIB 254,293,578 254,293,578 2 EBE
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary A —RBRRMBATRIE - 192,321
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,941,181 -
Total current liabilities mENEEAEER 494,440,548 513,291,355
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 777,802,939 905,231,767
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ BELERRSHEE 3,733,722,880 3,867,697,426
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32. Statement of financial position of the company (continued)

32. XABMFBRRER (@)

Note: BEE -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: KABREZBENT :
Capital Accumulated
reserve losses Total
BARGEE HEtEs1E st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2018 72018448 1H 5,366,157,807 (2,123,100,341) 3,243,057,466
Loss and total comprehensive loss FABEREEBERE
for the year - (74,671,421) (74,671,421)
Transfer from development maintenance HERBEEESEEBEERRE
fund to capital reserve 1,476,022 - 1,476,022
At 31 March 2019 and at 1 April 2019 2019FE3 831 H%20195481H 5,367,633,829 (2,197,771,762) 3,169,862,067
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREBBEKREEEBELEE
for the year = (138,707,130) (138,707,130)
Transfer from development maintenance HEBEEESBEEERRE
fund to capital reserve 6,612,928 - 6,612,928
At 31 March 2020 720203831 8 5374246757 (2,336,478,892) 3,037,767,865

33. Approval of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 July 2020.
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